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November 05, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:  Letter of Clarification No. 2 
   City of Houston Downtown Facilities Plan 
 
REFERENCE:  RFP No.: S63-T30037 
 
TO:   All Prospective Proposers 
 
This Letter of Clarification is issued for the following reasons: 

 
1. To provide responses to the questions received from prospective proposers prior to the 

deadline to submit questions: 
 

1 Question Is this project listed in the CIP?  
Is there a budget associated with this solicitation?  

 Response Yes, there are CIP projects affiliated with these buildings. The City is 
looking to receive the best value for its dollar. There is no set budget 
amount at this time; the budget will be developed during negotiations with 
the recommended vendor.  
 

2 Question Can an MBE/WBE Certified firm be on multiple teams that are being 
primed by other firms?  

 Response Yes, prime contractors responding to the RFP can list the same MWBE 
certified firms on their MWBE participation plan.  

3 Question Please confirm that if a certified Hire Houston First (hhf) firm (city or 
local) responds as a Joint Venture with a non-hhf company, the JV 
is still eligible for the extra points. 
 

 Response Each Joint Venture partner firm must be Hire Houston First (HHF) 
Designated (city business or local business) in order for the Joint Venture 
respondent to qualify for the preference / be eligible for the extra points. 
 

4 Question To prepare a response of this magnitude for the City of Houston, we 
believe it requires a lot more time. Would the city consider extending 
the due date by another 45 days? 
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 Response The solicitation due date has been extended to Thursday, November 18, 
2021 at 2:00 P.M. 

5 Question Would the City please clarify what type of scope/firm they are 
looking to lead this effort?  
 
Is it architectural services for planning/programming and design, or 
is it more of a financial/program management consultant?  
 
It is hard to tell from the information in the RFP. 
 

 Response The City requires creative ideas for addressing its needs in the downtown 
area. The current RFP does not require architectural or engineering 
services.  
 

6 Question If a firm is awarded this contract, are they precluded from being 
awarded any of the design/construction projects that come out of 
this planning (design of a building renovation or a new building)?  
 
If the prime would be precluded, would the awarded team’s 
subconsultants also be precluded from future work? 

 Response A firm will not automatically be precluded from participating in future work 
relating to design and construction services resulting from this RFP. If the 
City receives a proposal that offers a comprehensive and viable plan for 
addressing its needs downtown, it may later issue a solicitation for design 
or construction services. Until the plan is complete, it is impossible to 
determine whether the awarded team would be precluded from 
participating in future work.  
 

7 Question Will the attendance list for the Pre-Proposal Conference be shared 
through the portal? 

 Response The pre-proposal attendee list has been uploaded and attached to the 
City’s eBid site. You can view the list via the following link:  
T30037 - Pre-Proposal Attendee List 
 

8 Question State law prohibits public entities from procuring AE services based 
on price.  However, the RFP requests fee proposals.  Is it the City’s 
intention that AE’s will not be prime on this contract? 
 

 Response The RFP seeks a creative plan for its downtown buildings. It does not 
require architectural or engineering services. The City intends to select a 
Proposal that best meets the needs of the City and that provides the best 
overall value. 
 

9 Question Please confirm if fixed price (Lump sum) is the preferred price 
proposal structure for this RFP of City of Houston? 

 Response Yes.  
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10 Question The development of the Plans requested on the Scope of Work can 
vary in complexity and depth of analysis.  
 
Can you provide more detail on what is expected within each of the 
deliverables?  
 
Is there an estimated budget in hours or cost to help us understand 
the level of effort?   
 
If no additional detail is available may we respectfully recommend 
that the financial scope be measured on billing rates (rather than 
total fees), for equal comparison between bids? 

 Response Each vendor may propose options for delivering the plan. The City prefers 
a lump sum contract but may discuss other contractual options during 
negotiations.  

11 Question For schedule, is the end objective to complete all components by 
the end of year 3? 

 Response The schedule is subject to negotiation.  

12 Question For schedule and scope, is there are prioritization or sequence 
amongst buildings to be performed? 

 Response The City is open to recommendations on the most efficient sequence.  

13 Question Could the development plan approach all buildings renovations in 
parallel? 

 Response Yes.  

14 Question If we establish a Joint Venture for this pursuit, will members of the 
joint venture be precluded from any follow up work on these 
buildings? 

 Response See response to question no. 6. A firm will not automatically be precluded 
from participating in future work relating to design and construction 
services resulting from this RFP. If the City receives a proposal that offers 
a comprehensive and viable plan for addressing its needs downtown, it 
may later issue a solicitation for design or construction services. Until the 
plan is complete, it is impossible to determine whether the awarded team 
would be precluded from participating in future work.    

15 Question If the team comprises a Prime and its sub-consultants, will the Prime 
or the subconsultants be precluded from any follow-up work on 
these buildings? 

 Response If the City receives a proposal that offers a comprehensive and viable 
plan for addressing its needs downtown, it may later issue a solicitation 
for design or construction services. Until the plan is complete, it is 
impossible to determine whether the awarded team would be precluded 
from participating in future work. 
   

16 Question Is there a budget cap for this scope of work? 
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 Response The City is looking to receive the best value for its dollar. There is no set 
budget amount at this time, as the City is seeking a cost neutral solution.    

17 Question If addendums are published for this RFP or responses to the 
questions take longer than expected. Can the Solicitation Due date 
be extended as well to allow the teams enough time to revise their 
proposals accordingly? 

 Response The solicitation due date has been extended to Thursday, November 18, 
2021 at 2:00 P.M. 

18 Question The RFP appears to request for Professional Services related with 
planning and recommendations. Typically, these solicitations do 
not request pricing or fees, as the consultants are selected based 
on qualifications and the pricing is negotiated with the selected 
respondent.  
 
Please clarify if the City would consider eliminating pricing as a 
selection criteria? 

 Response No.  

19 Question Following up to question no. 18, if pricing is required, there should 
be a detailed table of services expected, to make sure all vendors 
respond in an equitable manner. One vendor could really low ball 
the pricing, with the intention to re-negotiate if selected.  
 
Would the city provide a table for pricing? 

 Response No, each proposer may identify its own pricing structure.  

20 Question Concerning requested pricing and professional services costs, 
please refer to TBAE RULE §1.147 Professional Services 
Procurement Act to verify that this solicitation will be in compliance 
with the Texas Administrative Code. 
 
Web links as follows for your reference: 
TITLE 22 - Examining Boards 
PART 1 - Texas Board of Architectural Examiners 
CHAPTER 1 - Architects 
SUBCHAPTER H    - Professional Conduct 
 
 

 
 

“An Architect shall neither submit a competitive bid to nor solicit a 
competitive bid on behalf of any governmental entity that is 
prohibited by the Professional Services Procurement Act, 
Subchapter A, Chapter 2254, Government Code, from making a 
selection or awarding a contract on the basis of competitive bids. 
For purposes of this section, the term "competitive bid" means 
information which specifies the fee charged by an Architect for a 
professional service, including information from which such fee 

§1.147 Professional Services Procurement Act 
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may be extrapolated or indirectly determined. An Architect may 
disclose to a governmental entity the fee for a professional service, 
including information found in a fee schedule, only after the 
governmental entity has selected the Architect on the basis of 
demonstrated competence and qualifications pursuant to the 
Professional Services Procurement Act.” 
 
There are circumstances that can be adjusted to allow Publicly 
funded entities to request fees.  
 
If this is one of those situations, please also clarify those conditions 
in the solicitation. 

 Response The RFP seeks a creative plan for its downtown buildings. It does not 
require architectural or engineering services.   

 
END OF LETTER OF CLARIFICATION NO. 2 

 
When issued, Letter(s) of Clarification shall automatically become a part of the solicitation 
documents and shall supersede any previous specification(s) and/or provision(s) in conflict with 
the Letter(s) of Clarification. All revisions, responses, and answers incorporated into the Letter(s) 
of Clarification are collaboratively from both the Strategic Procurement Division and the applicable 
City Department(s). It is the responsibility of the respondent to ensure that it has obtained all such 
letter(s). By submitting a proposal on this project, respondents shall be deemed to have received 
all Letter(s) of Clarification and to have incorporated them into their proposals.  
 
If you have any questions or if further clarification is needed regarding this solicitation, please 
contact Yesenia Chuca at yesenia.chuca@houstontx.gov or 832.393.8727. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jerry Adams 
Chief Procurement Officer 
 
 
C: File: T30037 
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